
NOTICE

OF

MEETING

EMPLOYMENT PANEL
will meet on

MONDAY, 13TH NOVEMBER, 2017

At 6.30 pm

in the

ASCOT AND BRAY - TOWN HALL, MAIDENHEAD

TO: MEMBERS OF THE EMPLOYMENT PANEL

COUNCILLORS LISA TARGOWSKA (CHAIRMAN), EILEEN QUICK (VICE-CHAIRMAN), 
PHILLIP BICKNELL, PAUL BRIMACOMBE, STUART CARROLL, DR LILLY EVANS, 
LYNNE JONES AND MJ SAUNDERS 

SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS
COUNCILLORS CHRISTINE BATESON, SIMON DUDLEY, DAVID HILTON, 
JACK RANKIN, JOHN STORY, EDWARD WILSON, SIMON WERNER AND 
SAMANTHA RAYNER

Karen Shepherd – Service Lead - Democratic Services - Issued: Sunday, 5 November 2017

Members of the Press and Public are welcome to attend Part I of this meeting. The agenda is available on the Council’s 
web site at www.rbwm.gov.uk or contact the Panel Administrator Karen Shepherd 01628 796529

Fire Alarm - In the event of the fire alarm sounding or other emergency, please leave the building quickly and calmly 
by the nearest exit.  Do not stop to collect personal belongings and do not use the lifts.  Do not re-enter the building 
until told to do so by a member of staff.

Recording of Meetings –In line with the council’s commitment to transparency the public section of the meeting will 
be audio recorded, and the audio recording will also be made available on the RBWM website, after the meeting. 

Filming, recording and photography of public Council meetings  may be undertaken by any person attending the 
meeting. By entering the meeting room you are acknowledging that you may be audio or video recorded and that this 
recording will be in the public domain. If you have any questions regarding the council’s policy, please speak to the 
Democratic Services or Legal representative at the meeting.

Public Document Pack

http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/


AGENDA

PART I
ITEM SUBJECT PAGE 

NO

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence
 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any declarations of interest
 

5 - 6

3.  MINUTES

To consider the Part I minutes of the meeting held on 16 October 2017.
 

7 - 10

4.  UNISON AND GMB PAY CLAIM FOR 2018/19

To consider the above report
 

11 - 32

5.  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

To consider passing the following resolution:-

“That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the remainder of the meeting whilst discussion takes place 
on items 6-7 on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Paragraphs 1-7 of part I of Schedule 12A of the Act"
 



PRIVATE MEETING

6.  MINUTES 

To consider the Part II minutes of the meeting held on 16 October 2017.

(Not for publication by virtue of Paragraph 1, 4 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972)

33 - 34

7.  ENCOURAGING AND INCREASING THE USE OF POOL CARS BY 
COUNCIL EMPLOYEES AND REVIEW OF BUSINESS MILEAGE 
RATES 

To consider the above report

(Not for publication by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972)

35 - 40

8.  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT INITIATIVES 

To consider the above report

(Not for publication by virtue of Paragraph 3, 4 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972)

41 - 48





MEMBERS’ GUIDE TO DECLARING INTERESTS IN MEETINGS 

Disclosure at Meetings

If a Member has not disclosed an interest in their Register of Interests, they must make the declaration of 
interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as they are aware that they have a DPI or Prejudicial 
Interest. If a Member has already disclosed the interest in their Register of Interests they are still required to 
disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter being discussed.  

A member with a DPI or Prejudicial Interest may make representations at the start of the item but must not 
take part in the discussion or vote at a meeting. The speaking time allocated for Members to make 
representations is at the discretion of the Chairman of the meeting.  In order to avoid any accusations of taking 
part in the discussion or vote, after speaking, Members should move away from the panel table to a public area 
or, if they wish, leave the room.  If the interest declared has not been entered on to a Members’ Register of 
Interests, they must notify the Monitoring Officer in writing within the next 28 days following the meeting. 

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) (relating to the Member or their partner) include:

 Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain.
 Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit made in respect of any expenses occurred in 

carrying out member duties or election expenses.
 Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed which has not been 

fully discharged.
 Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the relevant authority.
 Any licence to occupy land in the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer.
 Any tenancy where the landlord is the relevant authority, and the tenant is a body in which the relevant 

person has a beneficial interest.
 Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where: 

a) that body has a piece of business or land in the area of the relevant authority, and 
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued 
share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal value of the shares of any one class belonging to the 
relevant person exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.

Any Member who is unsure if their interest falls within any of the above legal definitions should seek advice 
from the Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting.

A Member with a DPI should state in the meeting: ‘I declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in item x 
because xxx. As soon as we come to that item, I will leave the room/ move to the public area for the 
entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’

Or, if making representations on the item: ‘I declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in item x because xxx. 
As soon as we come to that item, I will make representations, then I will leave the room/ move to the 
public area for the entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’

Prejudicial Interests

Any interest which a reasonable, fair minded and informed member of the public would reasonably believe is so 
significant that it harms or impairs the Member’s ability to judge the public interest in the item, i.e. a Member’s 
decision making is influenced by their interest so that they are not able to impartially consider relevant issues.  

A Member with a Prejudicial interest should state in the meeting: ‘I declare a Prejudicial Interest in item x 
because xxx. As soon as we come to that item, I will leave the room/ move to the public area for the 
entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’

Or, if making representations in the item: ‘I declare a Prejudicial Interest in item x because xxx. As soon as 
we come to that item, I will make representations, then I will leave the room/ move to the public area for 
the entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’

Personal interests

Any other connection or association which a member of the public may reasonably think may influence a 
Member when making a decision on council matters. 

Members with a Personal Interest should state at the meeting: ‘I wish to declare a Personal Interest in item x 
because xxx’. As this is a Personal Interest only, I will take part in the discussion and vote on the 
matter. 5

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



EMPLOYMENT PANEL

MONDAY, 16 OCTOBER 2017

PRESENT: Councillors Lisa Targowska (Chairman), Phillip Bicknell, Paul Brimacombe, 
Stuart Carroll, Dr Lilly Evans, Lynne Jones and MJ Saunders

Officers: Terry Baldwin and Karen Shepherd

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for Absence were received from Councillor Quick.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

None received

MINUTES 

RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That the Part I minutes of the meeting held on 14 
August 2017 be approved. 

OPTIONS FOR GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE REVISION 

Members considered a proposed amendment to the council’s Grievance Procedures, 
following a discussion at the previous meeting. The new proposal included the option 
to include a review by the Chairman of the Employment Panel to determine if a stage 
3 hearing was required. The Head of HR explained that if an employee was unhappy 
at stage 1 they could appeal to their manager at stage 2. If they remained unhappy 
after this stage, a review would be undertaken by the Chairman of the Panel who 
would look at the paperwork and outcome, and determine if any further investigation 
was needed. If appropriate, a stage 3 appeal hearing would then take place; 
alternatively the grievance would be signed off as the final stage. The Chairman 
commented that when she received the papers for a stage 3 appeal it was often clear 
if the case was straightforward or not. 

Councillor Saunders asked how, through the lens of a group of independent parties 
including the press or the appellant, would the Chairman always, beyond reasonable 
doubt, be seen as independent if the individual was also the Lead Member with 
responsibility for HR? The Chairman responded that most organisations did not have 
Member involvement anyway. It would be in her own interests to act objectively as she 
would not want to risk a tribunal and she would also wish to do the best for staff.  
Councillor Saunders commented that the discussion at the last meeting had focussed 
on objectivity and the need for Member involvement. He therefore questioned whether 
the proposal had achieved this or it had focussed on the Member who would be the 
greatest target for claims of a lack of objectivity. The solution proposed made the 
process more likely to be challenged.

The Head of HR highlighted that an officer outside of HR always investigated at stage 
1. The Principal Member for HR would therefore be looking at the process and 
paperwork of an investigation undertaken independently of HR. The ACAS code 

7

Agenda Item 3



recommended only 2 stages in the process. The proposal still retained a third stage 
for the council. 

Councillor Saunders commented that the debate was covering the same issues 
discussed at the last meeting, namely that the existing process provided unambiguous 
objective Member involvement. The Panel wanted to retain this objectivity and 
independence so that those observing did not feel it had been diluted. 

Councillor Bicknell commented that the third stage involving three councillors could 
take many hours. He welcomed the review by a senior politician to determine if the 
case warranted a lengthy third stage as this would provide a sense balance.  
Councillor Saunders commented that the sole issue was that the Chairman of the 
Panel was also the Principal Member for HR. An alternative form of Member 
involvement was required to restore objectivity. Councillor Bicknell suggested three 
Members could vote by email to decide whether a third stage was necessary. The 
Head of HR commented that this would still delay the process as it would take time to 
produce the papers. The stage 2 papers were supplemented by reasons for appeal 
and the officer’s response. The difference in the proposal was that arrangements were 
only needed with one Member rather than three.

Councillor Brimacombe commented that organisations were stacked against the 
individual; it was difficult for individuals to bring issues forward. The healthy way for 
issues to emerge was for brave individuals to identify problems through a grievance 
procedure. If a process was in place that was self-reinforcing for the status quo, the 
opportunity to do something different was diminished. The council was fortunate to 
have an independent embedded group and to waste this resource in dealing with a 
governance issue felt like throwing it away for process efficiency. The current process 
was unwieldy and he agreed with improving the process but cautioned against 
throwing out the central tenet that it was extremely fortunate to have councillors 
involved. Option 3 would exclude councillors or bring them in as a last resort. He 
referred to the model used in planning where many things were done by officers but 
the scrutiny of councillors was retained as applications could be called in by ward 
councillors.

Councillor Bicknell commented that there needed to a be a sense check. If that 
determined a full panel was needed then one should take place. Efficiency was 
wanted but it was also important to ensure transparency and fairness. He highlighted 
that ACAS would be happy with a 2 stage process. Councillor Brimacombe 
commented that he had been asked to attend a panel hearing but in many cases he 
had physically been elsewhere so had not been able to participate. He would however 
be very happy to be one of the councillors who reviewed the notes and talked to 
officers as necessary. If he was then happy, and the employee had not asked for 
councillor involvement, he would be happy to sign it off. If one or two councillors 
undertaking this review were concerned, it could be escalated. This would act as a 
triage process so that only serious cases went to stage 3. Councillor Carroll agreed 
with the idea of an initial screening. 

Councillor Saunders proposed revised wording:

‘Revise the process to include documentation review by Members of the 
Employment Panel of which at least two would be required to determine a 
stage 3 panel was required.’

8



A suitable synopsis would need to be sent to each of the Members undertaking the 
review. The Chairman highlighted that such cases usually involved a lot personal data 
and it would therefore not be appropriate to circulate this to all Panel Members.

Councillor Jones commented that there was a need for more than one Member to be 
involved in the review; she understood the reasons not to send personal data to all. 
Members should be asked if they were available, then paperwork could be sent to two 
or three. Councillor Saunders stated that paperwork should not be sent selectively; it 
should be open to all. The Chairman responded that for data protection circulation of 
personal data should be minimised wherever possible. Councillor Bicknell suggested 
the synopsis could be written without names or departments identified. 

Councillor L Evans posed the questions, what was trying to be achieved and what was 
the saving to be made? Damage could be done by making a small saving as people 
may feel there was no independent voice in the process.  It should not be a single 
person making the decision as this was too much pressure for both sides. 

The clerk explained that the current process for identifying Panel Members for an 
appeal was to approach the Chairman, then the Opposition Member and then ask 
other Members if they were available on the proposed date. Members agreed that 
Option 3 should be amended to include other councillors, identified using the process 
already in place.

RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That Employment Panel

i) Approves option 3 as set out in point 2.9 with the amendment that three 
Members of the Panel would be included in the review to determine if a 
third stage hearing was required. Members to be involved in the review 
would be selected using the process currently in place for identifying 
Members for an Employment Appeals Panel.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 

RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting 
whilst discussion takes place on item 6 on the grounds that IT involves the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1-7 of part I of 
Schedule 12A of the Act

The meeting, which began at 6.30 pm, finished at 7.30 pm

CHAIRMAN……………………………….

DATE………………………………..........

9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report Title: UNISON and GMB Pay Claim for 2018/19 

 

Contains Confidential or 
Exempt Information? 

NO - Part I  

Member reporting:  n/a 

Meeting and Date:  Employment Panel – 13 November 2017 

Responsible Officer(s):  Alison Alexander, Managing Director and 
Terry Baldwin, Head of Human Resources  

Wards affected:   None 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

1 DETAILS OF RECOMMENDATION(S)  

RECOMMENDATION: That Employment Panel notes the report and: 
 

i) Reviews the trade union pay claim and the supplementary information supplied 
as part of the consideration of the annual pay review for eligible staff for 
2018/19. 

ii) Identifies any additional pay option(s) that it wishes HR to explore or develop 
further for its consideration. 

 
2 REASON(S) FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) AND OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

Local pay, terms and conditions framework agreement  
2.1 The Royal Borough came out of the ‘Green Book’ terms and conditions in 2011 and 

has agreed local pay provisions. Appendix C, table 5 provides details of pay increases 
under the ‘Green Book’ and then after, under local terms and conditions.  The local pay 
determination framework covers all non-school based staff. Under the framework the 
trade unions are able to submit their pay and reward claim each year for consideration 
by Employment Panel.  

 
2.2 In accordance with the framework, following Cabinet’s approval of budgets, 

Employment Panel should advise trade unions of the pay and reward settlement for 
2018/19 once it has been finalised. The trade unions are entitled to ballot its members 
on the outcome of the pay settlement. 

 
 Trade union pay claim 
2.3 The trade unions are able to submit a claim for a pay award (movement of salary 

scales), pay reward (pay for performance) or mixture of both. For 2018/19 the trade 
unions have chosen to submit a joint claim and to only submit a claim for a pay award.  

 
2.4 Appendix A details the joint claim as: 

REPORT SUMMARY 
 
1. This report deals with the annual pay claim submitted by UNISON and GMB 

trade unions. It covers all staff on local terms and conditions, including Heads of 
Service, Executive and Deputy Directors and Managing Director.  

2. It recommends that Employment Panel reviews and considers the information 
provided in relation to any pay increase being applied from April 2018. 

3. These recommendations are being made as part of a local agreement the 
council has with its recognised trade unions, allowing them to annually propose 
an increase for non school based staff. 

4. The financial implications of these proposals are set out in section 4.1. 

11

Agenda Item 4



 

 

       A  5% or £500 (whichever is the greater) across the board increase on all salary 
points and allowances 

       Deletion of pay points to reach the Foundation Living Wage of £8.45 
 

Initial response to the pay claim 
2.5 The cost of the pay claim has been modelled in Appendix B. It equates to an additional 

cost to salary budgets of £1,000,765. 
 
2.6 The lowest paid RBWM employees are apprentices, who receive salaries starting at 

£10,890 per annum. This means that no existing staff would be eligible for the cash 
increase of £500 as it reflects earnings up to £9,994 per annum. 

 
2.7 £8.45 per hour equates to £16,302 per annum. Table 1 details the 17 employees who 

currently earn less than this amount, they are Apprentices, some of whom are paid 
above the national rate, and staff on the supported employment scheme. The cost of 
this increase is £41,000 including employers’ costs. 

 
 Table 1: Employees earning less than £16,302 per annum 

Post FTE 
FTE 
Salary 

Prorated 
salary 

New FTE  
salary 

Pro rata 
Difference/ 
increase 

Apprentice 1.0000 10,890 10,890.46 
16,302.51 

     
16,302.51  

       
5,412.05  

Apprentice 1.0000 10,890 10,890.46 
            
16,302.51  

     
16,302.51  

       
5,412.05  

Apprentice 0.8108 10,890 8,830.10 
            
16,302.51  

     
13,218.25  

       
4,388.15  

Apprentice 1.0000 13,710 13,710.31 
            
16,302.51  

     
16,302.51  

       
2,592.20  

Apprentice 1.0000 13,710 13,710.31 
            
16,302.51  

     
16,302.51  

       
2,592.20  

Apprentice 1.0000 13,710 13,710.31 
            
16,302.51  

     
16,302.51  

       
2,592.20  

Apprentice 1.0000 13,710 13,710.31 
            
16,302.51  

     
16,302.51  

       
2,592.20  

Apprentice 1.0000 13,710 13,710.31 
            
16,302.51  

     
16,302.51  

       
2,592.20  

Apprentice 0.9459 14,585 13,797.04 
    
16,302.51  

     
15,421.29  

       
1,624.25  

Supported employment role 0.2162 14,907 3,223.14 
            
16,302.51  

       
3,524.87  

          
301.73  

Supported employment role 0.2162 14,907 3,223.14 
            
16,302.51  

       
3,524.87  

          
301.73  

Supported employment role 0.1081 15,056 1,627.68 
            
16,302.51  

       
1,762.43  

          
134.76  

Supported employment role 0.2162 15,056 3,255.35 
            
16,302.51  

       
3,524.87  

          
269.52  

Supported employment role 0.6757 15,056 10,172.97 
            
16,302.51  

     
11,015.21  

          
842.24  

Supported employment role 0.1081 15,056 1,627.68 
            
16,302.51  

       
1,762.43  

          
134.76  

Supported employment role 0.6216 15,056 9,359.14 
            
16,302.51  

     
10,133.99  

          
774.86  

Supported employment role 0.2162 15,159 3,277.62 
            
16,302.51  

       
3,524.87  

          
247.25  

Total salary difference          32,804 
Total cost including on costs                 41,005 

 
2.8 Both unions will send representatives to the Employment Panel meeting on 13 

November 2017 to present the details of their claim. 
 

12



 

Finalising pay increase budget and method  
2.9 The salary increase budget will be confirmed following Cabinet meeting in February 

2018, HR will then model a range of options and ratios covering both pay award and 
pay reward. The chosen increase formula will be agreed at Employment Panel in 
March 2018 and the trade unions informed. 
 
Local and economic information 

2.10  Appendix C sets out background information on recent RBWM annual pay settlements, 
the level of pay awards nationally and some economic information.  

 
Table 2: Options 

Option Comments 

Consider the pay claim submitted by 
the trade unions.  
 
This is the recommended option 

This request forms part of the annual 
pay review approach as detailed in 
the local pay, terms and conditions 
framework agreement. 

Do not consider the trade union pay 
claim. 
 

This is not recommended  

This would contravene the agreed 
framework. 

 
3 KEY IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 The final pay settlement will be fully costed once Employment Panel has reviewed and 
identified its preferred option for 2018/19 in March 2018. 
 

Table 3: Key implications 

Outcome Unmet Met Exceeded Significantly 
Exceeded 

Date of 
delivery 

Any 
additional 
options 
identified by 
Employment 
Panel are 
modelled 
and costed  

The 
additional 
option(s) 
is not 
modelled 
and 
costed 

The 
additional 
option(s) 
is 
modelled 
and 
costed 

n/a n/a By March 
2018 
Employment 
Panel 

 
4 FINANCIAL DETAILS / VALUE FOR MONEY 

4.1 The costed options, including employers’ costs are detailed in Table 4. This has been 
broken down to display the salary, overtime and costs for casual temporary staff, which 
all impact on the annual salary bill. 
 
Table 4: Financial impact of report’s recommendations  

  
5% increase 

  
Extrapolated 
annual salary 

Increase New salary 

Salary 19,504,591 975,230 20,479,821 

Overtime 333,015 16,651 349,665 

Casual 177,686 8,884 186,570 

Grand Total 20,015,292 1,000,765 21,016,056 

 

13



 

4.2 The modelled data has been reviewed and approved by an Accountancy Technician on 
25 October 2017. 

 
5 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 The council has had a local pay, terms and conditions agreement with its recognised 
trades unions since December 2014. The framework is for the determination and 
ongoing local pay and reward on a year by year basis with the intention of resolving all 
disputes through ongoing dialogue. Both parties will endeavour to always enter into 
discussions with a view to reaching a mutually acceptable agreement. The agreement 
incorporates an annual consultation and negotiation meeting schedule. 

 
6 RISK MANAGEMENT  

6.1 
Table 5: Impact of risk and mitigation 

Risks Uncontrolled 
Risk 

Controls Controlled 
Risk 

Not allowing 
trade unions the 
opportunity to 
present a pay 
claim 

Medium - 
negative publicity, 
possible industrial 
action 

Allow trade 
unions to present 
their pay claim 

Low - negative 
publicity 
minimised 

 
7 POTENTIAL IMPACTS  

7.1 An equality analysis will be conducted in May 2018 as part of the moderation exercise 
once the employee rating process is finalised. 

 
8 CONSULTATION 

8.1 The Head of HR or nominated deputies consult regularly with the trade unions, and this 
process has followed the agreed timetable. 
 

8.2 UNISON and GMB have consulted with their members prior to making their pay claim. 
 

TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION 
9.1 In accordance with the local pay framework, the timetable is set out below: 
 

Table 6: Implementation timetable 
Month  Pay and reward cycle 

13 November 
2017 

Trade unions submit their pay claim to Employment Panel 

20 February 
2018 

Salary increase budget agreed at Full Council 

  

March 2018 

  

HR model a number of pay scenarios for consideration 

Employment Panel make final decision for pay claim 

Trade unions and staff are informed of the outcome  

 Trade unions may ballot their members about the pay decision 

14



 

April 2018 Staff appraisal process takes place to be concluded by 30 April 

 

May 2018 
Trade unions advise management of any outcome of ballot 

Management consider outcome of ballot 

June 2018 Any agreed pay award and/or reward is implemented for all staff on 
local pay, terms and conditions and backdated to 1 April 

 

9 APPENDICES  

     Appendix A – Unison and GMB local pay claim 2018 

     Appendix B – Pay modelling 

     Appendix C – Pay awards and trends for 2018 pay claim 
 
10 BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

10.1 None. 
 

11 CONSULTATION (MANDATORY)  

Name of 
consultee  

Post held Date 
sent 

Commented 
& returned  

Cllr Targowska Principal Member for HR 03/11/17 05/11/17 

Alison Alexander Managing Director  02/11/17  

Russell O’Keefe Executive Director 02/11/17  

Andy Jeffs Executive Director 02/11/17 04/11/17 

Rob Stubbs Section 151 Officer 02/11/17 03/11/17 

Terry Baldwin Head of HR 02/11/17 03/11/17 

Mary Kilner Head of Law and Governance 02/11/17  

 
REPORT HISTORY  

 

Decision type:  
Non-key decision  

Urgency item? 
No  

Report Author: Vanessa Faulkner, HR Manager, 01628 685622 

 

 

15



Appendix A 

&    

 

ROYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD LOCAL PAY CLAIM 2018 
 

INTRODUCTION 

This pay claim is submitted by UNISON on behalf of members employed by The Royal Borough of 

Windsor & Maidenhead 

UNISON’s claim is for the following: 

 Appropriate reward for the major change our members have experienced through 
outsourcing of many parts of the Council’s service, and subsequent reorganisation of the 
remaining staff. 

 Reward for the increasing stress faced by front line workers arising from changes to work 
organisation and location. 

 A substantial above-inflation pay rise to help restore and maintain employees’ living 
standards  

 Nobody being paid less than the recognised Foundation Living Wage rate, which has become 

a benchmark for the minimum level of decent pay across the UK and is now paid by large 

sections of the public services and many major private companies.  

 A settlement weighted towards the, often female, lower paid members of the workforce 
who have done least well in monetary terms out of recent pay awards  
 

UNISON and GMB are therefore submitting the following claim for 2018, which seeks to improve and 

enhance the morale and productivity of our members.  Meeting our claim will give The Royal Borough 

the opportunity to demonstrate its commitment to creating a workforce, which is well paid and high 

in morale and productivity.  The claim is straightforward and realistic. 

SUMMARY CLAIM 

We are seeking: 
 

 A  5%, or £500 (whichever is the greater) across the board increase on all salary points 
and allowances 

 Deletion of pay points to reach the Foundation Living Wage of £8.45 (UK) 
 

BACKGROUND TO THE CLAIM 

A substantial increase will help restore and maintain living standards of the staff who have seen their 
real pay eroded considerably. 
 
Prior to submitting this claim UNISON carried out a survey of all it’s members to inform the claim, and 
to make sure that it truly reflected the feeling of staff. We handed out surveys to all members arriving 
for work over a period of three weeks and met them at lunchtime to receive the completed surveys 16



back. The majority of those who responded worked full time and earned over £30,000 per year, did 
not get paid for any overtime they worked and working for RBWM was their sole employment. The 
majority were long-standing staff who had worked for RBWM for more than 5 years, though nearly 
half of them were looking for another job. The majority of them asked us to submit a pay claim which 
asked for an across the board pay rise, not related to performance appraisal ratings. 
 
GMB undertook a collective consultation with GMB members in August and September. GMB held a 

number of workplace based consultation meetings located at different venues of RBWM.  GMB 

members completed an anonymous pay survey and we also had an open discussion with members 

about their pay rise expectations. GMB reps encouraged and consulted with members on an individual 

basis. All consultation meetings were very constructive. Once workplace consultations were 

concluded, members who were unable to attend the GMB workplace based consultation meetings, 

were sent the pay survey via post to ensure that as much feedback as possible is received. This was to 

ensure that GMB fully represented members' view and interests. The vast majority of GMB members 

strongly expressed their stance and preference to receive a percentage rise regardless of 

performance, as this will reflect permanently on their wages. GMB members feel strongly about 

restoring some of the losses they have experienced over recent years with below par pay increases. 

The greatest asset of The Royal Borough is its employees.  In this pay round, our members are looking 

for evidence of the value that The Royal Borough places upon them and a share in the economic 

recovery. 

This claim is both realistic and fair.  The following gives full justification for the claim.  UNISON hopes 

that The Royal Borough will give this claim the full consideration and response which employees 

expect and richly deserve. 

1. COST OF LIVING 
 
According to the Office for National Statistics (ONS): 

The Retail Prices Index rose from 222.8 (April 2010) to 270.64 (April 2017) – an increase of 21.5% 

(January 1987 = 100). Over the same period the Consumer Prices Index rose from 89.2 (April 2010) to 

102.9 (April 2017) – an increase of 15.4% (2015=100). 

Salary April 

2010 

April 2017 salary that maintains real value.  

(Salary April 2010 uprated in line with RPI) 

10000 12150 

12000 14580 

15000 18255 

18000 21870 

20000 24300 

25000 30375 

30000 36450 

40000 48600 

17



50000 60750 

 

Between April 2010 and April 2017 inflation rose by 21.5% while pay in The Royal Borough rose by 

far less, with a pay freeze for many staff for many of these years. This represents a fall in real living 

standards for The Royal Borough employees.  

UNISON believes that the Retail Prices Index (RPI) remains the most accurate measure of inflation 

faced by employees. The most widely quoted figure for inflation in the media is the Consumer Prices 

Index, However, UNISON believes that CPI consistently understates the real level of inflation for the 

following reasons: 

 CPI fails to adequately measure one of the main costs facing most households in the UK – 

housing. Almost two-thirds of housing in the UK is owner occupied, yet CPI almost entirely 

excludes the housing costs of people with a mortgage 

 CPI is less targeted on the experiences of the working population than RPI, since CPI covers 

non working groups excluded by RPI – most notably pensioner households where 75% of 

income is derived from state pensions and benefits, the top 4% of households by income 

and tourists 

 CPI is calculated using a flawed statistical technique that consistently under-estimates the 

actual cost of living rises faced by employees. The statistical arguments are set out 

exhaustively in the report “Consumer Prices in the UK” by former Treasury economic 

adviser Dr Mark Courtney, which is summarised here      

 
3. FORECAST INFLATION RATES 

Treasury forecasts indicate that the cost of living is set to rise significantly again in 2018, with the 

rate hitting 3.5% followed by three successive years of inflation at 3%. If these rates turn out to be 

correct, the cost of living employees will face will have grown by over 13% between 2018 and 2021, 

following the pattern set out in the graph below.  

 

Source: HM Treasury, Forecasts for the UK Economy, August 2017 

Pay increases below these forecasts will only lead to a further erosion in the real value of take home 
pay and increase the debts which many of our members are faced with.    

3.5

3 3 3

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

3.5

4

2018 2019 2020 2021

%
 in

cr
e

as
e

Forecast annual increase in cost of living

18

http://www.unison.org.uk/documents/4126


4. IMPACT ON REAL WAGES 

Given the government’s intention to maintain the 1% public sector pay cap to 2019, the potential 

impact of this inflation forecast on the value of an average local government wage is shown below. 

Over the next two years, the average wage would have declined in value by a further £1,142. 

 

The most recent data from the Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings suggests that the real value of 

average UK pay packets has fallen by 11% since 2010, with employees losing almost £2,900 a year 

from the value of their pay packet since the government came to office.  The average worker would 

have accumulated more than £20,268 more had their wage kept pace with inflation. 

For those public sector workers who have not benefited from any incremental progression in their 

pay, the decline has been even sharper. Between 2010 and 2016, the public sector worker on the 

median wage saw a 15% cut in the real value of their earnings, leaving their 2016 wage £5,171 down 

on the value of their earnings at the start of 2010 and the accumulated loss from their wage failing 

to keep pace with inflation each year stood at over £26,618. 

5.  INFLATION COMPONENTS 

The changes in the price of components of the Retail Prices Index over the year to July 2017 are 

shown in the table below. 

Item Average % increase to July 2017 

Consumer durables  7.4 

Personal expenditure  6.0 

Travel and leisure  4.3 

Alcohol and tobacco  4.1 

Housing and household expenditure  2.9 

Food and catering  2.8 

All goods  3.9 

All services  3.9 

-621

-1142-1200

-1000

-800

-600

-400

-200

0

2018 2019

C
u

t 
in

 v
al

u
e

 o
f 

an
n

u
al

 p
ay

 (
£

)

Impact of 1% pay cap on value of 
average local government wage

19



All items 3.6 

Source: Office for National Statistics, Consumer Price Inflation Reference Tables, July 2017 

Within these broad categories, some costs are rising particularly fast, with electricity bills jumping 

9% over the last year, travel fares rising 6.3% and clothing / footwear picking up 9.5%. 

The price of housing also remains one of the biggest issues facing employees and their families. 

Across the UK, house prices rose by 4.9% in the year to June 2017, taking the average house price to 

£223,0001. In the South East, annual house price inflation was 4.9% over the year to June 2017, 

taking South East average house prices to £320,000. 

The rate of increase in rents has been more subdued, but still jumped 2.1% in the year to June 2017, 

when average rents across England and Wales were £827 (£885 in the South East)2. Rents among 

new tenancies across the UK hit £925 a month in July 20173, with the South East ahead at average 

monthly rent of £1,025. In UNISON’s local government membership survey4, 51% of South East 

respondents reported that they were finding housing costs more or much more difficult to meet 

compared to the previous twelve months. 

UNISON surveys have consistently found that around one third of employees have child caring 

responsibilities Though not specifically assessed by CPI or RPI figures, childcare costs represent a key 

area of expenditure for many employees. Therefore, it is also worth noting that the annual Family & 

Childcare Trust survey5 for 2017 found that the annual cost of a part-time nursery place for a child 

under two has hit £6,061 per year and the annual cost for a full-time place is £11,594.  

Current inflation rates can mask longer term changes in the cost of living. The table below shows the 

scale of the increases in certain core items of expenditure between 2010 and 2016 . 

Item % price rise   

2010 - 2016 

Item % price rise   

2010 - 2016 

Item % price rise   

2010 - 2016 

House 

prices 

31% Bus and coach 

fares 

26% Electricity 28% 

Rail fares  24% Gas 24% 

 
6. PAY SETTLEMENTS AND AVERAGE EARNINGS 

The ability of The Royal Borough to attract and retain staff in the long term will be damaged if pay 

continues to fall behind the going rate in the labour market.  

The table below shows that pay settlements over the last year across the economy have been 

running at 2%. 

A huge gap opened up between private and public sector settlements in 2010. This grew during 

2011-12 when the public sector pay freeze was accompanied by average private sector pay rises of 

2.5%. Since then, the 1% public sector pay cap has been running at around half of the average rate in 

                                                           
1 Office for National Statistics, House Price Index June 2017, published  August 2017 
2 LSL Property Services. Buy to Let Index, July 2017 
3 HomeLet Rental Index, July 2017 
4 Under pressure, underfunded and undervalued- UNISON members keeping communities together June 2016 
5 Family & Childcare Trust, Childcare Costs Survey 2016 20



the private sector. Latest figures show public sector pay settlements at 1% over the last year, private 

sector settlements at 2% and voluntary sector settlements at 1% 

A sample of economic sectors that can provide alternative career options for The Royal Borough 

staff shows pay settlement rates varying between 1.5% and 2.5%. 

Sector  Average reported pay settlements 

Across economy 2.0% 

    

Private sector  2.1% 

Not for profit 1.8% 

    

Retail & wholesale 2.5% 

Transportation & storage 2.2% 

Information & communication 1.5% 

Admin & support services 2.3% 

Source: Labour Research Department, based on reported settlements in 

sector over last year 

These trends add to wage differentials, which already show that local government pay rates are the 

worst in the public sector.  

In order to remain competitive with wages across the economy, The Royal Borough will need to keep 

up with average earnings growth predicted to rise across the economy at 2.7% in 2018 and rise 

steadily to 3.6% by 2021, following the pattern shown below. 

 

Source: Office for Budgetary Responsibility, Economic and Fiscal Outlook, March 2017 

When examining the outlook over the next two years, the average increase in the value of the 

economy is set to run at 1.7%, average earnings growth at 2.9% and the cost of living at 3.2%.   

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

3.5

4

2018 2019 2020 2021

%
 a

n
n

u
al

 g
ro

w
th

Forecast average earnings growth

21



 

 

Sources:  

* Based on GDP forecasts from Office for Budgetary Responsibility, Economic and Fiscal Outlook, 

March 2017 

** Based on average earnings forecasts from Office for Budgetary Responsibility, Economic and Fiscal 

Outlook, March 2017 

** Based on RPI forecasts from HM Treasury, Forecasts for the UK Economy, August 2017 

 

7. RECRUITMENT AND RETENTION PRESSURES BUILDING 

The unemployment rate has been on a steady decline  and is now at its lowest level in 42 years. The 

Office for Budgetary Responsibility predicts that the rate will remain near historically low levels over 

the next four years. Such a labour market background makes competitive wage rates ever more 

crucial. 

The use of temporary and agency staff can be linked to issues around workload and morale, as 

temporary and agency staff are used to deal with staffing problems caused by absenteeism or 

recruitment and retention difficulties. In UNISON’s local government membership survey6, 39% of 

South East respondents said the use of temporary/agency staff had increased in the last twelve 

months.  

8. LOW PAY  

It is vital that pay settlements continue to address the ongoing general problem of low pay in The 

Royal Borough 

Recent studies show that those on low incomes have suffered inflation rates that are 1% higher than 

the average over recent years because of the rapid rise in basic costs such as food, energy and 

transport7, eroding the value of wages for low-paid staff even further.  

With less disposable income, low paid workers are having increasing difficulty providing an adequate 

living standard for their children.  

 

                                                           
6 Under pressure, underfunded and undervalued- UNISON members keeping communities together June 2016 
7 Institute of Fiscal Studies, IFS Green Budget 2014 

0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

Pay cap Value of economy* Average wages** Cost of living ***

G
ro

w
th

 r
at

e
 (

%
)

How does the pay cap compare to forecasts for 
next few years?   

22



9. A LIVING WAGE 

The Living Wage (LW) has become a standard benchmark for the minimum needed for low-paid 

workers to have a “basic but acceptable” standard of living. The Living Wage is calculated and 

announced annually by the Living Wage Foundation. It remains the most accurate indicator of the 

wage needed to achieve a basic, but acceptable, standard of living. It is currently £8.45 pence an 

hour outside London - £16,302 for a 37 hour week – and £9.75 pence an hour in London. 

The Royal Borough is now competing in a labour market in which where the Living Wage of £8.45 an 

hour has become an increasingly common minimum point in the pay scale.  

Studies supported by Barclays Bank have shown that Living Wage employers report an increase in 

productivity, a reduction in staff turnover / absenteeism rates and improvements in their public 

reputation. 

Consequently, there are now over 3,000 employers accredited as Living Wage employers by the 

Living Wage Foundation, including some of the UK’s largest private companies, such as Barclays, 

HSBC, IKEA and Lidl.  

Within the public sector, the Living Wage is now the minimum rate in collective agreements in all 

Scottish governmental organisations, the NHS and further education colleges in Wales, and across 

the UK’s universities (for staff on a 35-hour week). 

In 2015 research by UNISON showed that over half of local authorities paying the Living Wage to 

their directly employed staff.8 Despite this, we have begun to see ‘real’ Living Wage rates frozen, to 

allow catch up by the statutory national Living Wage. 

 10. WELFARE CUTS – WHAT DOES IT MEAN FOR RBWM WORKERS? 

Household income for people on low incomes consists of pay and in-work support provided by the 

government. This pay claim needs to be seen in the context of reductions in the system of ‘in-work’ 

support that is provided through tax credits and housing benefit.  

 

Although the government reversed its plans to change the tax credit threshold and the taper, those 

elements have been frozen and are not adjusted for inflation. The family element for new claimants 

was removed in April 2017 and support limited to two children. 

 

Local housing allowances - housing benefit for private sector and housing association tenants – have 

been frozen, meaning that tenants have had to find the money to pay any rent increase. Family 

premium has been withdrawn from new claim and child benefit has been frozen since April 2010. 

 
11. CONCLUSION 

There can be no doubt that all employees working for The Royal Borough have seen a significant fall 

in their living standards. Their real earnings have fallen substantially. 

UNISON and GMB believe it is right that RBWM offers staff a genuine reward for all their hard work 

and commitment over the past year and in 2017. UNISON and GMB further believe that a reasonable 

uplift is necessary to ensure the commitment of the workforce and to allow them to feel valued and 

                                                           
8 This data was derived from a Freedom of Information request sent to all UK local authorities over the summer of 2015, which 

received a 93% response rate 23



rewarded. UNISON and GMB also firmly believe that the members deserve an uplift to help improve 

their standards of living, not simply to try to keep their heads above water, as they have done for 

some time. 

Some of the headline figures mask the harsher realities of inflation that our members have to deal 

with on a daily basis. The prices of many other essentials have risen at a far higher rate. Such 

increases hit working people and their families very hard. They are not costs that can be avoided. 

This squeeze on incomes compounded over the years by wage erosion means that employees are 

looking for wage rises to compensate for cuts in real take home pay.  

As you are aware, last year, the pay increase did not keep up with the headline inflation rate which 

in real terms means a pay cut for our members. It is essential that our members are able to restore 

some of the losses they have experienced over recent years with below inflation pay increases. 

To deliver a quality service, The Royal Borough relies on its workforce and the retention of a specialist, 

skilled, experienced and dedicated workforce is important to the quality of service delivery.  

Competition for that workforce from other sectors is strong.  

2018 is the year in which The Royal Borough can begin to demonstrate that its workforce is included 

in the recovery. This is a fair and realistic claim which we ask The Royal Borough to meet in full. 

 

24



Appendix B

Salary modelling, including 25% employers costs

Grade 1% 2% 3% 4% 5%

Apprentice 1,094 2,189 3,283 4,377 5,472

LP Grade 1A 566 1,133 1,699 2,265 2,832

LP Grade 1B 98 197 295 393 491

LP Grade 1C 591 1,182 1,773 2,363 2,954

LP Grade 2 6,586 13,172 19,758 26,343 32,929

LP Grade 3 15,225 30,450 45,675 60,900 76,125

LP Grade 4 8,818 17,636 26,454 35,273 44,091

LP Grade 5 38,394 76,787 115,181 153,575 191,968

LP Grade 6 16,582 33,164 49,746 66,328 82,910

LP Grade 7 35,802 71,604 107,406 143,208 179,010

LP Grade 8 18,776 37,552 56,329 75,105 93,881

LP Grade 9 11,960 23,920 35,880 47,840 59,800

LP Grade 10 7,780 15,559 23,339 31,119 38,899

LP Grade 11 11,506 23,012 34,517 46,023 57,529

LP Grade 12 4,825 9,650 14,476 19,301 24,126

LP Grade 13 6,480 12,960 19,440 25,920 32,400

Head of Service 7,015 14,030 21,046 28,061 35,076

Deputy Directors 2,266 4,531 6,797 9,062 11,328

Executive Directors 1,250 2,500 3,750 5,000 6,250

Strategic Directors 4,539 9,077 13,616 18,155 22,694

Grand Total 200,153 400,306 600,459 800,612 1,000,765

Trade Union pay claim - 2018/19

5% or £500, whichever is the greater, across the board increase on all salary points and allowances 

regardless of appraisal rating.

25



 

 

Appendix C 
 
 

 

Pay awards and trends for 2018 pay claim 
 

October 2017 
 
1. Economic data 
 
1.1 The Consumer Price Index rose by 3% in the year to September 2017, following a 2.9% gain 

in the previous month. It was the highest inflation rate since April 2012, mainly due to rising 
prices of food, transport and leisure activities. 
 

1.2 The annual core inflation rate, which excludes prices of energy, food, alcohol and tobacco, 
stood at 2.7%, unchanged from the previous month's five-year high and in line with market 
consensus. 
 

1.3 Retail Price Index (RPI) annual inflation remained at 3.9% in October 2017. 
 

1.4 Inflation Rate forecast as published by Office for National Statistics (ONS) in the United 
Kingdom averaged 2.58% from 1989 until 2017, reaching an all time high of 8.50% in April of 
1991 and a record low of -0.10% in April of 2015. 

 

2. General pay trends 
 
2.1 Figures provided by XpertHR, an online resource for employment law, HR good practice and 

benchmarking, showed the median whole economy pay settlement level of 2.0% to the three 
months ending July 2017, unchanged from 2.0% for the three months to June 2017.  

 
2.2 Results from the Labour Research Department (LRD) survey showed the median level of 

union-negotiated awards for the whole economy was 2.3% in the three months to July 2017, a 
decrease from 2.4% for the previous three months to June 2017. 

 

26



 

 

2.3 The Engineering Employers Federation mean (EEF, manufacturing) was 2.4% in the three 
months to June 2017, up 0.1% from 2.3% for the three months to May 2017. The EEF has not 
published figures for the three months to the end of July 2017 

3. Recruitment and redundancy outlook 
 
 Recruitment 
3.1 The latest report from Labour Market Outlook (LMO) (Summer 2017) suggests that 

employment confidence has increased modestly since the previous spring report. As in the 
spring report, employment confidence is high across much of the private sector. In the 
manufacturing and production sector it has fallen modestly, while employment growth 
prospects have increased in the private sector services. In addition, the employment outlook 
for the public sector has improved since the previous report and is broadly consistent with the 
trend over the last couple of years.  Employment confidence has increased among employers 
in the public administration and defence sector. Additionally, employment prospects in the 
voluntary sector have increased since spring 2017 and remain positive in the healthcare sector 
and education sector. 

 
3.2 Recruitment intentions among LMO employers are broadly consistent with recent trends. Just 

over two-thirds (68%) of organisations state that they are planning to recruit employees in the 
three months to September 2017. More than three-quarters (77%) of public sector employers 
plan to recruit employees during the same period, compared with almost two-thirds (64%) of 
private sector firms and more than three-quarters (77%) of voluntary sector employers.  
Recruitment intentions are strongest in the healthcare (80%), education (73%) and public 
administration and defence sectors (72%).  

 
 Q4 2016 recruitment intentions, by sector (%) 

 
 

Redundancies 
3.3 The proportion of LMO employers expecting to make redundancies in Q3 of 2017 is broadly 

consistent with recent reports. Overall, around a fifth of organisations (21%) are planning to 
make redundancies over the next three months. The proportion of organisations planning to 
make redundancies remains lower in the private sector (18%) than in the public sector (33%).  
Meanwhile, redundancy intentions remain elevated. More than a quarter (27%) of voluntary 
sector organisations plan to make redundancies in Q3.  

 

27



 

 

  
Q4 2016 redundancy intentions (%) 
 

  
 
4. Labour supply 
 
4.1 Reflecting the weakness in wage growth, the survey data suggests that the continued strength 

in labour demand has yet to feed through to recruitment pressures for employers. On average 
employers received a median of 24 applicants for their last low-skilled vacancy compared with 
19 applicants for their last medium-skilled vacancy and eight applicants for their last high-
skilled vacancy they sought to fill. Overall, nearly half of the applicants were deemed suitable.  
These figures are broadly consistent with the figures reported in the LMO report in 2014 and 
2015, suggesting there is still some slack in the labour market. This is despite the further 
decline in the unemployment rate, which fell to a record low of 4.5% in the three months to 
May 2017.  

 
4.2 Closer analysis of official labour market data illustrates how the fall in unemployment rate has 

been mirrored by an increase in supply, and the ability to hire non-UK nationals from the 
European Union. The Government’s welfare reforms and higher participation rates of older 
workers appear to be key factors that are offsetting the tight labour market conditions.  
According to the latest official data, the number of non-UK nationals from the European Union 
in employment in the UK increased by 171,000 from Q1 2016 to Q1 2017 and by around 
900,000 between Q1 2013 and Q1 2017. However, there has been some volatility across the 
past four quarters, while the latest net migration data suggest that it is falling due to an 
increase in emigration and a reduction in immigration from Eastern Europe. The prospect of 
EU immigration making a net contribution to labour supply therefore appears highly uncertain. 

 
5. National pay negotiations 
 
5.1 In September 2017 the Government announced an end to the 1% public sector pay cap. The 

current position on pay negotiations is: 

   Nationally negotiated local government employee terms and conditions (Green Book) 
– two year deal for 2016 and 2017, with bottom loaded fixed sum increases up to Scale 3, 
and then 1% for all other pay points. RBWM employees are on local pay, terms and 
conditions. 

28



 

 

   Scottish Local Government –for 2017 only, £350 flat increase for those earning less than 
£35,000, 1% for all other employees.  

   Craft Workers – as per Green Book. 

   Chief Executive and Chief Officers – two year deal 1% for 2016 and 2017. RBWM 
senior leaders are on local pay, terms and conditions. 

 
6. National Minimum wage rates 
 
6.1 Table 2 details the increase in National Minimum wage since 2010. 
 
 Table 2: National Minimum wage 

Year 25 and over 21 to 24 18 to 20 Under 18 Apprentice 

2017 £7.50 £7.05 £5.60 £4.05 £3.50 

2016 £7.20 £6.95 £5.55 £4.00 £3.40 

2015  £6.70 £5.30 £3.87 £3.30 

2014  £6.50 £5.13 £3.79 £2.73 

2013  £6.31 £5.03 £3.72 £2.68 

2012  £6.19 £4.98 £3.68 £2.65 

2011  £6.08 £4.98 £3.68 £2.60 

2010  £5.93 £4.92 £3.64 £2.50 

 
RBWM lowest hourly (excluding apprentices) rate is £7.73. 
 
The UK Living Wage (Voluntary) 

   The current UK Living Wage is £8.45 an hour. 

   The current London Living Wage is £9.75 an hour. 
 

National Living Wage 

   April 2017 – National living wage (NLW) is £7.50 for over 25’s. This replaced the National 

Minimum Wage for over 25’s. RBWM pays £7.73 per hour as it lowest hourly rate. 
   The NLW came into effect in April 2016 and continues to increase the wage bill for many 

employers. More than 43% report that their wage bill has seen an increase, and the same 
proportion has seen no effect.   

   Around 17% private sector employers and 15% voluntary sector employers report that their 
wage bill has increased compared with less than 8% public sector establishments. 

   Among the LMO employers who said that the NLW increased their organisation’s wage bill, 
over 85% are planning to do something to manage these additional wage costs in the year 
ahead. 32% plan to take lower profits and/or absorb the costs, 29% plan to manage this 
through improved efficiency/raised productivity and 18% say they will pass on the cost to 
the consumer. 28% of public sector employers will look to reduce the size of their 
workforce. 

 
Apprentice rates 

6.2 Table 3 details the current apprentice rate: 
 
 Table 3: RBWM apprentice rates 

Annual Hourly rate Age range 

£10,890.46 £5.64 18 – 20* 

£13,710.31 £7.11 21 - 24 

£14,585.44 £7.56 25 plus 

 
*This is higher than the current national rate of £3.50 per hour.  

 
7. Other public sector pay settlements 
 
7.1 Table 4 details other public sector pay settlements. 

29



 

 

 
 Table 4: Other public pay settlements 

Organisation Pay settlements 

NHS 1 April 2017 - 1% consolidated pay increase for all NHS staff in the UK, as 
well as 1% uplift to the minimum and maximum rates for High Cost Area 
Supplements. 

Civil Service Average pay awards limited to up to 1% for four years from 2016-17. 

Police From 1 April 2017 police officers will receive: 

 1% increase to base pay for all ranks 

 an additional one-off non-consolidated payment to officers at 
federated and superintending ranks 

 1% increase to the London weighting payment. 

 1% increase to the dog handlers’ allowance 
Firefighters The NJC has agreed an increase of 2% with effect from 1 July 2017 

School 
Teachers 
Pay 

September 2017, 2% Main scale Teachers, 1% all other teachers and 
allowances. 

 
 
8. RBWM - Local pay settlements history 
 
8.1 Table 5 details the history of local pay settlements: 
 
 Table 5 – local pay settlements 

Date Pay change 

April 2009 the last global pay award under national pay. 

April 2010 no annual pay award.  

April 2011 £250 (consolidated) given to those earning less than £21,000 per annum.  

April 2012 1% consolidated to those on the maximum pay point of scales 2 - 6. 

April 2013 

extra increment to the value of 2.5 % added to the top of scales 2 and 3, and 2% 
for scales 4 and 5.  
 
Increment values for scales 2 and 3 adjusted to reflect at least 2.5% increase. 
(NB: scales now renumbered as Grades as result of new pay reward scheme). 

With the introduction of the pay reward scheme from April 2014, incremental 
progression is subject to at least satisfactory performance.  Other staff had the 
potential to receive performance related pay. 

April 2015 the pay reward was applied as follows: Good - 0.85%, Excellent - 2.56%, 
Outstanding - 5.97%   

April 2016 the pay reward was applied as follows: Good - 0.78%, Excellent – 2.34%, 
Outstanding – 3.9% 

April 2017 

the pay reward was applied as follows: Good – 0.35%, Excellent 0.69%, 
Outstanding – 1.38% 

April 2017 – a pay award of 0.8% was also applied to all salaries 

 
9. RBWM - Recruitment and Retention  
 
9.1 General recruitment has a high success rate for RBWM. Recruitment has previously been 

challenging in Finance and Planning in line with the national picture, however the position has 
improved significantly following restructures in these areas.  A dedicated microsite for Planning 
and publicity of the council’s regeneration programme are likely to have contributed to a very 
successful recruitment campaign in early autumn, which has led to a number of long-standing 
vacancies being filled.  

 
9.2 The council no longer employs adult and children’s social workers and other hard to fill social 

care roles following the partnership arrangements with Optalis and AfC and the associated 

30



 

 

transfer of staff. Therefore the council is not responsible for recruitment to these skill shortage 
roles.        

 
10. RBWM - staff turnover  
 
10.1 Table 6 shows the percentage turnover of staff within the Royal Borough since April 2017. 

Turnover is defined as all staff leaving the council, including those transferred to a new 
employer through a TUPE transfer or those leaving through redundancy. Voluntary turnover 
refers purely to staff who resign from their positions or retire from the council. 

 
 Table 6: RBWM staff turnover  

   

2017/2018 
  

 

April May June July August September 

RBWM Turnover (YTD) including 
TUPE 1.45% 5.94% 7.26% 41.61% 51.15% 52.85% 

Voluntary Turnover (YTD) 0.97% 2.06% 2.88% 4.87% 7.22% 8.55% 

 
Figures for RWM turnover now reported as year to date following a change in the reporting 
methodology. 
 

31



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

33

Agenda Item 6
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

35

Agenda Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

41

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes
	4 UNISON and GMB Pay Claim for 2018/19
	6 Minutes
	7 Encouraging and Increasing the Use of Pool Cars by Council Employees and Review of Business Mileage Rates
	8 Employee Benefit Initiatives

